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From: Kevin Sumption PSM 
Sent: Monday, 2 June 2025 1:48 PM
To: Portfolio Committee 5
Cc: Jenni Senator; Sandy Hollis
Subject: RE: Inquiry into antisemitism in New South Wales - Post-hearing responses - 19 

May 2025

Dear David, 
 
Again, my sincere thanks to you and the committee for extending an invitation to the Museum to attend the 
Committee hearings. 
 
Today, I have gone through the copy of the uncorrected transcripts and I am happy to say that my comments 
(for Kevin Sumption only) are a fair record of my exchange with the committee and do not require any 
corrections. 
 
Thank you for also sending to me a single Supplementary question, which was as follows: 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTIONS  
 
Sydney Jewish Museum  

(1) You cite capacity to engage an additional 20,000 primary students annually. What type of government 
support would enable that growth? 

 
Sydney Jewish Museum response to the Supplementary question: 
 
Background: 
In Australia today, we are faced with the confronting reality that the fabric of civil society is beginning to fray. 
We are seeing increased polarity, a rise in antisemitism, hate speech, and “casual racism” across all levels of 
Australian society. This highlights an urgent need to change the way that we are educating young Australians 
about the dangers of discrimination, as well as an increased need to expand our eƯorts into rural and remote 
areas.  
 
Proposal: 
This proposal seeks to ensure every NSW public school student visit the Sydney Jewish Museum (SJM) at least 
once during their schooling. Currently up to 30,000 High school students p.a visit the SJM, this proposal seeks 
to expand this visitation to include an additional 20,000 primary school students a year. 
 
As per the current NSW curriculum, there are numerous opportunities for the SJM to specifically work with 
years 5 and 6 (stage 3) and engage them in a new 90-minute program based at the Museum in Darlinghurst. 
The program will be specially designed by our team of educators to enhance social cohesion, as well as 
introduce students to Jewish life and culture. 
 
This will be a powerful new program built around SJM’s experience in primary school education, designed to 
combat antisemitism, racism and hate speech. It will foster awareness of the social responsibilities that 
citizenship in Australia necessitates, allowing school students to think critically about their actions. Research 
supports the role of museums in enhancing social cohesion and community harmony, particularly through 
personal stories and inclusive programming. Critically, this proposed new education program will also be 
designed to align with the NSW curriculum’s focus on values-based education, leadership, and resilience.   
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The relevant curriculum links are highlighted below in Figure 1. Private school students would also be 
encouraged to participate, financially supported by their own schools. The SJM is the ideal venue to conduct 
this kind of program, where every student will have access to the same program, approach and resources. By 
unifying the way that we talk about antisemitism and racism, we have a greater chance of being able to 
encourage change in young people.  
 
Figure1. 
 

 
 
 
Fulfilling the Curriculum Needs of the Personal Development, Health and Physical Education (PDHPE) 
subject area 
The most significant potential for increased upper primary visitation falls under the subject Personal 
Development, Health and Physical Education (PDHPE). PDHPE is a compulsory subject which all students 
under stage 6 must participate in. Up to 65,000 students partake in this subject in NSW every year, at every 
year level. PDHPE places emphasis on developing student qualities which are in line with the museum’s core 
teaching, including empathy, resilience and ‘upstander’ behaviour.  
 
Reaching 20,000 Students a Year 
Designing a new visit program around PDHPE would allow the SJM to potentially address the needs of up to 
20,000 primary school students and their teachers each year, over a period of 4 years (from 2027). 
 
A New Focus on Regional and Rural NSW 
Should we receive government support, our aim is to work through a scalable model, beginning with students 
in the Greater Sydney area, and then moving outwards to regional and rural students including centres such as 
Newcastle and Wollongong. We understand that rural and regional centres as a critical group to target as it is 
in centres outside of Sydney where students are unlikely to have ever encountered a Jewish person that 
antisemitism can fester. In 2025 and 2026 we would envisage working with focus groups to develop a 
comprehensive teacher training program to give teachers the tools to continue teaching this program in the 
classroom. We will also design a unique values-based primary program, and to work towards marketing this 
program and building relationships with rural and regional schools. Based oƯ the work done in 2025 and 2026, 
by 2027 we aim to attract students from across the state, including the 1,700 rural and regional primary 
schools in NSW.  
 
For this program to be most eƯective, the cost of transportation from country schools to the SJM would likely 
need to be oƯset by the state government. These costs have not been modelled by the SJM, nor included in the 
estimates in this proposal. 
 
Reaching the Families of Students  
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By taking this approach, it is not just these 20,000 students which will benefit from this program. We expect 
that we will be able to influence the family members of students who participate as primary education is as 
much about the home as it is about school. Therefore, we estimate the up to 40,000 parents and family 
members will also interact with this program through send-home resources, homework and excursion-based 
assignments which students will take part in.  
 
Requested Government Support 
 
We are seeking support from the Government for:  
 

1. Establishment costs: $428,000 (2025/26) 
2. Annual student subsidy: $375,000 pa for 4 years (2027-2030) 

 
Museum’s Program Establishment Costs 
To establish the new program will require considerable work and investment from the SJM throughout 2025 
and 2026. The cost of preparing to receive the first students is currently estimated at $428,000. This cost is 
spread over the preceeding two years before a student even attends the Museum.  
This up-front investment covers: the acquisition of a Learning Management System (LMS), software 
licensing,  education website/portal development, program development staƯ and marketing and group 
booking costs.  
 
Annual Student Subsidy  
Aside from the initial program establishment costs, the Museum has a number of costs it will incur in each of 
the four years the program is proposed to run.  These are principally annual staƯ costs for 2 dedicated 
specialists and building up to 2 additional part-time educators to deliver the Museum program. The licence 
cost for LMS, as well as maintenance costs for the education portal. In addition, there are marketing and 
booking costs associated with attracting and managing the visits of each school each year.  

Importantly, the estimates provide by SJM are based on detailed cost modelling that can be supplied to the 
Committee if requested. 
 
Many thanks 
KevinS 
 
 

Kevin Sumption PSM
 

Chief Executive Officer 
Sydney Jewish Museum
 

  

 

148 Darlinghurst Road, Darlinghurst NSW 2010
sydneyjewishmuseum.com.au  

  

  

 

 

I have sent this email at a time that works for me.  Please respond at a time that works for you. 
  




